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PRESS: Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: . . . (gavel). . . Aloha and good morning, everyone, Members, and those in
the gallery. I am Councilmember Bill Medeiros. I'm the Chair of the Infrastructure
Management Committee. And at this time, with a quorum present, I will call the meeting
to order. And today is Monday, September 13, 2010, and it is now 9:01 a.m. Welcome,
Members, and welcome, everyone.
Today, I'd like to first introduce our Members that are present, and I'll be going down
our list here. We have the Vice-Chair of this Committee, Member Pontanilla. Good
morning.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning, Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: And then we have Member Baisa. Good morning, Gladys.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Then we have Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Hi, good morning, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning. We have the for...Member of the Committee and also the
Council Chair, Mr. Mateo. Good morning, Danny.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: We also have present here this morning, Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning. And taking a seat now, we welcome and say good
morning to the Council Vice-Chair, Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning. And we have with us a Non-Voting Member, and we
welcome him as part of our Committee, and that's Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning. So, Members, we have our entire Committee present this
morning, and I thank you for being here this morning after a weekend. Thank you for
being here early. Next, I'd like to introduce the Administration representatives here this
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morning. We have from the Department of Public Works, the Director, Mr. Milton
Arakawa. Good morning, Milton.
MR. ARAKAWA: Good morning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: We have from the Department of Corporation Counsel, Mr. David
Galazin. Good morning, David. And we have from the Maui Police Department,
Sergeant Barry Aoki. Good morning, Barry. Thank you for being here. We also have
here our Staff, which makes this Committee work and do accordingly, as we have to.
And to my near left is our Committee Secretary, Ms. Camille Sakamoto. To my far left is
our Legislative Analyst, Mr. Mike Geers.
We do have some other people in the audience, Members, and I think it's important that
we introduce them. From the Kimura International, Incorporated, that did the Maui
County downhill bicycle tourist study, we have Mr. Glenn Kimura, to that side of the
gallery, and Ms. Nancy Nishikawa. Thank you for being here this morning. And we
have the attorney for Kimura International, Incorporated, Mr. Paul Horikawa.
Mr. Horikawa. And sitting in the audience as part of our Department of Public Works is
Mr. Nolly Yagin. Good morning.
ITEM NO. 40: DOWNHILL BICYCLE TOURS STUDY (C.C. No. 10-93)

CHAIR MEDEIROS: So, Members, we have just one item this morning on our agenda, and it is
Item IM-40, and this is the Downhill Bicycle Study. And as indicated on your agendas,
this is the...the Committee is in receipt of the following: 1) County Communication
No. 10-93, from Councilmember Gladys C. Baisa, relating to the downhill bicycle tour
study being conducted by Kimura International, Incorporated; 2) correspondence dated
July 15, 2010, from the Director of Public Works, transmitting a study entitled: "Maui
County Downhill Bicycle Tour Study" (June 2010), prepared by Kimura International,
Incorporated. The purpose of the study is to conduct an assessment of the downhill
bicycle tour industry and develop recommendations.
So, at this time, Members, I'd like to call on...before we...and one more introduction.
Here from the State of Hawaii, Department of Transportation, we have Ms. Charlene
Shibuya, on the...my left, up at the top of the gallery. Thank you for being here.
Before we start on the public testimony I'd like to, at this time, give the ground rules for
our public testimony. Those wishing to testify should sign up at the table setup outside in
the lobby, just outside the door of this Chamber. Those testimonies shall be limited to
three minutes. The yellow light will indicate that you have 30 seconds remaining and
should begin to conclude. Testifiers are requested to state their name, for the record, and
to indicate who they are representing, if applicable. May I please request that everyone,
at this time, disable your cell phone ringers and other noise making devices to minimize
the disruption during these proceedings, and I thank you for your cooperation. We do
have people signed up to testify this morning. And I'm going to call...start calling our
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testifiers up. First to testify, and help me with your last name pronunciation, Bobbie
Patnode. Okay. See I'm used to pronouncing vowels either Italian or Hawaiian way, so
I, I might have pronounced it Patnode. . . . (chuckle).. .
MS. PATNODE (from the audience): . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR MEDEIROS: So would you come forward please and say your name on the mic, for the
record, and you are representing Kula Community Association, where you are a board
member. So, Ms. Patnode, please?
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MS. PATNODE: Thank you. I'm actually going to speak, first, for myself. My name is Bobbie
Patnode, and I live on Crater Road. I would like to say thank you for having the study
done. I think our money was well spent, because I think they mostly got it right. I think
it is important for residents and bike tours to find a way to co-exist in the safest way
possible, and I think we should make use of the study and implement many of the
recommendations. I would like to make three comments regarding the recommendations.
First, a recommendation which was not included in the short-term list, is to limit the
number of bike tours. I'd like to see this one considered in the short-term. As we all
know, that the problems with the tours have drastically decreased since the number of
tourist has gone down in the last two years. If we can cap the number of participants, at
any one time, I think we can continue to experience fewer problems. As a resident of
Crater Road, I only experience volume problems in the morning. There's the whole rest
of the day for people to ride their bikes down the mountain.
Second, I'd like to support the recommendation for pull-outs on Haleakala Highway. Not
only would pull-outs help motorists trying to pass the tours, but it would also help the
unescorted bikes as well. There aren't many recommendations that address...in the study
that address the unescorted bikes, but in my experience they are half of the close calls
I've had. The unescorted bikes frequently turn their heads to look at the view, and they
end up riding into the roadway in front of the cars. Once we had a rider drift into the
road, fall down, get up, fall down again, right in front of us all because she wanted to
look at the view. She was pretty upset and so were we. I think pull-outs would help
these riders take a break and safely admire the view instead of accidentally endangering
themselves and motorists. I'd also like to suggest that when we are able to start work on
pull-outs we start with Haleakala Highway, below Crater Road, as I think that would
benefit the most residents the soonest.
I'd like to express my opposition to the recommendation for a bike-connector path at the
intersection of Crater Road and Haleakala Highway. I drive past this intersection every
day, as I live just above it, and I see how it would be nice for the bike tours not to have to
stop, but when they don't stop, then we will have to merge with them, and just 100 feet
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down from there is a narrow bridge with no bike lane or shoulder, and I think that would
cause a problem.
I am also on the board of the Kula Community Association, and we are very interested in
addressing the recommendations from the study, but we haven't had time to get together
and do that yet. So I would like you to wait for us to do anything until we've had a
chance to do that. And that's all.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Ms. Patnode. Members, any questions for the testifier, at this
time? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony this morning and for being here.
MS. PATNODE: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Next, we have testifying is Andrea Binkley, Vice-President of Maui
Outdoor Circle. Ms. Binkley, would you give your name for the record and who you're
representing?
MS. BINKLEY: Thank you very much. I'm Andrea Binkley, Vice-President of Outdoor Circle,
and I've been a resident of Maui for now 12 years. And I wanted to join an organization
that would maintain the beauty of Maui when I moved here, and I joined the Outdoor
Circle, and I saw the wonderful works that they do, and it's a volunteer organization, and
they work hard. My goodness, they put in a lot of effort to maintain what is beautiful
about Maui. And now that I am the understudy of Warren McCord, as you all know
notorious Warren McCord who has bird-dogged for at least ten years, if not 20, I'm
hearing, about making Baldwin Avenue safe. Not just safe, but convenient and exposing
the beauty of that portion of Maui for everyone.
So, over the years, the studies have been done, and done, and done, and no conclusion
arrives. It, it comes up, and then we work with the planners, and we now have the
support of State planning to work out all the kinks of really making Baldwin Avenue safe
for bikers. But during the process it has now expanded into not just bikers. It is for the
convenience and the safety of all residents of, of Maui who use Baldwin Avenue
extensively. They use Rainbow Park. It's a very curvy road, and we believe that we've
addressed so many of the issues, and I think you will be able...the plans are already on,
on board. And the issues had to do with right-of-ways, had to do with whether or not the
elevation for overcoming gulches. So the engineering parts are certainly well under way,
but it's been a long time coming.
So I would like to support that we keep in mind that this is very critical, I believe it is
critical at this point, for the traffic pattern of accessing from Makawao area and for all the
downhill bikers, but it also is a greenway. It's for the residents. It's a walking path. It's
available. It has the expansion of being able to see, you know, all sides of the island and
everyone has been very helpful.
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I recommend that we continue to keep on board with the $200,000 that has already been
allocated for the EPA study. It is in the budget. We want to continue. So thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Ms. Binkley. Members, any questions for the testifier? I
have one question. Being that you're the Vice-President of Maui Outdoor Circle -MS. BINKLEY: Yes.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --some of the recommendations in the bike study is to widen the
shoulders in certain areas. There are some beautiful old and large trees -MS. BINKLEY: Yes.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --within that corridor. What would be the Maui Outdoor Circle's thinking
on possibly if the recommendations are followed, according to the study, some of the
removal or pruning of those trees?
MS. BINKLEY: The Outdoor Circle has been with pruning shears ready at the...waiting.
We've already allocated for purchasing all new shower trees where they are needed, and
they're prepared to be able to support any, any of the issues about the trees. And I know
that Warren McCord and the, and the arborists are very intimately involved in every one
of those trees along the Baldwin Avenue.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you so much -MS. BINKLEY: Yes.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --for that response and thank you for your testimony.
MS. BINKLEY: Yes, thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Next testifying will be Mr. Phil Feliciano of Cruiser Phil's. Would you
come forward, please? State your name and who you are representing. Good morning.
MR. FELICIANO: Good morning, Council Members. I'm Phil Feliciano, owner of Cruiser
Phil's, a downhill bicycle tour company, and we support pretty much most everything
that Kimura International has put forth. I submitted some testimony. You should have
copies of that. I won't bother to read that, but basically my, my statement is I believe the
permit process is where we need to start this procedure. Everything that you want to
accomplish, that we can accomplish, should be put into that permit. I brought along with
me a copy of the National Park's permit to, to give to you so you can maybe use as a
model.
And, and in it...you know, in, in the permit it should have who, what, where, when. You
know, and so anyone who applies for a permit can get a document, and it says this is how
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you will conduct yourself on our roadways. Whether you're an independent tour or a
guided tour, this is how it's done. This is the standardization. And then you can decide
whether or not you want to be a bike tour company or not. I think it's real important.
Also, the permit can then have what the...if there's violations what the penalties are, all
in that permit. So everyone has a document that we can all live by, and, and I believe
that's the, the way we should go. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Feliciano. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you once again for your presence and your testimony. Next, we have
testifying Mr. Walter Enomoto, representing Maui Bicycle Alliance, President.
Mr. Enomoto?
MR. ENOMOTO: Aloha and good morning -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Aloha.
MR. ENOMOTO: --Committee Chair Medeiros and County Council Committee Members.
Again, my name is Walter Enomoto. I'm here representing the Maui Bicycle Alliance, a
grassroots bicycling advocacy group. I didn't have too much in the way of prepared
remarks, but I did submit testimony that I'd ask you to look over.
We do want to reiterate our support for all of the short-term recommended items that
were identified in the Kimura study. And in that regards, in the five weeks since the
previous meeting, we've reached out to the Kula Community Association, the Upcountry
Citizens for Bike Safety and actually Cruiser Phil. And in your...in the attachment of my
testimony you'll see where there's a lot of consensus and support for some of the items
that were identified in the study. We weren't able to get Kula Community Association's
input, but we...hopefully we can add that to that spreadsheet, so that you can graphically
see where there's a lot of support for each of the items on that.
In regards to the funding, again, we are not in support of a separate bike path along
Baldwin. We haven't. And, again, we have two projects that have sat; one's not
complete, one hasn't even been started yet that have a greater benefit for the bang, the
Kihei Greenway along the Liloa or North-South Collector Road. We haven't gotten one
square foot of that yet. North Shore Greenway we're three-quarters of the way there and
hopefully we can move that project toward completion. And I can't see us starting in on
another brand new project with comparable, if not more exceeded higher costs to
implement when we still have other projects that should be done first and prioritize that
way.
In regards to the $200,000 funding for, I guess it was additional design work in Fiscal
Year 2011, we would like to reiterate the point that we made in the last meeting on this
issue, that that money, if it has not been spent, that it be used to assist with the design of
the physical implementation or the physical improvements that were identified in the
study. We feel that that's better spent to move that process along so that we can see some
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kind of positive impact on that. Again, from the previous meeting the Federal funding
for the Baldwin, which was pushed from 2014 out to 2015 and beyond, and we will
continue to fight funding for Kihei and North Shore Greenway as opposed to the Baldwin
Avenue bike path in that time.
We'd also ask that after your deliberations that we hope that you would support adoption
of this tour study so that it becomes the document that you folks will follow and the
Administration will follow going forward. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Enomoto, for your testimony. Members, any questions
for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you once again for being here this morning.
MR. ENOMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Next to testify will be Mr. Jimmy Muschietti of the Upcountry Citizens
for Bike and Traffic Safety. Would you come forward please? And following
Mr. Muschietti would be Mr. Fred Rohlfing.
MR. MUSCHIETTI: Aloha, Council.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aloha.
MR. MUSCHIETTI: My name is Jimmy Muschietti. I'm here as a member of the Upcountry
Citizens for Bike and Traffic Safety. We're in basic support of the Kimura, the Kimura
study with some concerns.
One of the main concerns we have has to do with enforcement, because I believe, and so
do most of the people Upcountry, that we wouldn't be here now and we wouldn't have
had to have paid this $250,000 fee if the Maui Police Department would do enforcement.
Because there's rules on the books already that, that say that vehicles can't go blocking
the roads below the speed limit, and bicycles can't be in the middle of the road, and
things like this, but the Maui Police Department...I see almost no presence Upcountry
even though we've complained and met with the Police Department, sent them a variety
of emails. So that's a big concern.
Another concern is funding, and we're not in support of using taxpayers' funds until we
see a tax levied on the bike companies. And we've suggested something like 10 percent.
They balk at this, but during the stand-down they had no trouble charging an additional
fee of 20, 30 percent to have people bussed up into the summit to watch the sunset. And
I know their numbers are down, and we've tried to be sensitive to that. That's one of the
reasons we didn't put our video out is because it shows the bike companies in such a poor
light, and we didn't want to pile on right now.
So we're, we're here to work with them, but we think that the time has come to stop this
foolishness. They've got to be compatible with our Upcountry people and traversing up
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and down the hill it's got to be done in a safer manner, and I think that can be done with
enforcement, and we can get down to some of the brass tacks on the study and that would
be great.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Are you done, Mr. Muschietti?
MR. MUSCHIETTI: Yes.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony this morning. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Jimmy.
MR. MUSCHIETTI: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for coming by and giving your testimony. Just to
clarify, now you mentioned no police presence. That's in regards to monitoring the bike
tours? That's...
MR. MUSCHIETTI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. MUSCHIETTI: I, I've asked the Police Department how many citations that they've given
out to bike companies, and they haven't addressed that. Our information is there have
been none. Yet we see multiple violations every single day. So some...something's
wrong there.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, we have the Police Department here this
morning. We'll ask, ask them for their response. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, and thank you very much, Mr. Muschietti, for being here. I
know this subject is very near and dear to your heart, and it's becoming near and dear to
mine, because I'm the representative for the area, and I get...hear a lot about it. You
mentioned safety, and you mentioned multiple violations. Can you kind of give us a little
bit of idea about what you're talking about?
MR. MUSCHIETTI: Well, I think I'd refer anyone to our YouTube video, Downhill Bike Hell
on Maui. That shows three minute and 22 seconds of hundreds of hours of video and that
shows violations where they're running the stop sign, stopping and blocking the
roadways, pulling off to the side, but not completely, and having moving people to pass
them on curves where you can't see. The bike companies, themselves, passing on double
lines, passing on curves, passing other bike companies, crowding in the intersections. I
mean it just goes on and on, and, and, and I've been, since 2004, pretty consistently doing
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the filming and had other people. We don't see Maui Police Department vehicles up
there unless they're coming and going, but you don't see them stationed. I don't know of
any violations or citations, excuse me, that have been given out.
And that sort of gives the bike companies, in my opinion, carte blanche. They just think
that they're above the law, and they don't have to conform, and that's where, I think, the
arrogance comes. And now with this study and, and I think we have people moving
together and that's what we have to do, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. But generally, you're okay with the study? We heard, we
heard a comment earlier, and I'd like your opinion, because I know you know a lot about
this, and that's the idea of the bike connector road at the end of...you know, where Crater
Road comes down and joins the highway -MR. MUSCHIETTI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --what do you think about that?
MR. MUSCHIETTI: I'm basically not in, in favor of, of using anything like I said those things
are going to take not only time, the studies that have to go on, but the, but the funds
which we don't have nowadays. So I, I just think that's just going to slow everything
down. I think that we set out a plan back in 2006 and the bike company owners bought
into that plan. They testified in front of this Committee saying that they bought into the
plan. They were going to hold their vans back, they were going to keep their bike riders
to the right, et cetera. And they have made a good effort, and I think that genuinely the
owners want to conform, and they want to be compatible. They don't want this, this
problem, but they, they can't control their own people. No matter how much they want
to, they can't.
So there has to be consequences and that's where we suggested a CDL license where you
get pulled over, you get cited, perhaps you lose that license. Therefore, you lose your
ability to be a van driver. That would help, I think, the bike companies, because it would
weed out the, the poorer employees. So we...I think there's simple solutions, and they're
not, in my opinion, in putting large amounts of money into turn-outs and things. I think
it's better to say there's some areas that the bikes can't go in. Baldwin Avenue, for
example, and Kokomo, I mean it's terrible where you go and there's no shoulder. I, I
think bikes should not be allowed in there unless they can come up with a plan.
And I also, just briefly, I see a distinction between the, the large commercial for-profit
tours versus the average citizen. I don't think we should be talking about them in the
same vein. I think...we've never had any complaints against any of the people that are
recreational riders. Those individuals you always see on the right side of the road, or
they're going so darn fast you can't catch up with them anyway. So I think, you know,
again, the model's there. We can do it with what we have and a little tweaking.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MR. MUSCHIETTI: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I appreciate your being here this morning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Any other Members for questions for Mr. Muschietti? Seeing none, thank
you for your testimony this morning.
MR. MUSCHIETTI: Thank you very much.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Mr. Rohlfing, please, come forward, and he'll be followed by
Mr. Dick Mayer.
MR. ROHLFING: Good morning. It's nice to see so many smiling faces this morning, on a
Monday. I'm going to be very brief. I have testified before. My name is Fred Rohlfing,
and I'm connected with the Kula committee on the bike problem. It's actually a
sub-committee of the Kula Community Association, and we've lost most of our members
over time, and I guess I'm the last man standing, because I'm here this morning.
Anyway, we have a continuing interest in, in seeing the program followed through upon
given the study by the Kimura people. And I would like to join in the proposals and
position of the bicycle people with Mr. Enomoto, and their suggestions for your early
action. The only thing I think that I would personally disagree with is that when you get
to identifying the, the bicycles and the, and the vans, I would like to see that in the law as
opposed to allowing them to decide whether they want to identify themselves or not. I
think that visibility, in itself, will tend to bring some additional enforcement, selfenforcement, if you will, of the rules and of the, of the road, so to speak.
So we're here to, to back up the, the proposals that are being made for early action by the
Council. The problem will not go away. It's liable to come back a lot stronger over time.
And I think now is the time for your action. Even though the election is coming you'll be
here probably again, and you can take care of this problem first now and not later. Thank
you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Rohlfing. Members, any questions? Seeing none, thank
you for your testimony. Next, we have Mr. Dick Mayer. Good morning, Mr. Mayer.
MR. MAYER: Good morning, Chair Medeiros and Council Members. I think basically this is a
very good study. I think that the Kimura group has done a nice job of listening to the
various groups in the community, the companies, et cetera, and put together a number of
good recommendations. Most of those recommendations are nicely summarized in
Chapter 7, of the study. It's only seven pages long. And I'm going to urge you and your
staffs to go, go through those and see what can be done, but there are a couple of items
that I think are significantly missing.
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One is the financial costs. They make the recommendations, but what they have not done
is indicated the costs of the various pull-outs. They've given nice diagrams of how many
feet they should be, and lengths, and, et cetera, et cetera, but I would urge you to ask
them, I'm not sure it's a complete study until they tell you how much it would cost to
implement the recommendations that they are making. And so, I think that is something
missing. And even if it's general budget...general ballpark figures, I think that would be
very useful for Mr. Pontanilla and the Budget Committee coming up when you say, you
know, how we're going to implement this particular study.
Also missing, are suggestions on how to raise the fees for those recommendations to be
made. As we all know, the highways are paid for by the people who pay for gas taxes.
The Federal, State, and County gas taxes pay for that. So the bus companies, the trucking
companies, the general public pay for those roads. The commercial bike companies are
getting a free ride on those roads, literally, and they don't pay gas taxes. And so, what I
would recommend is that you implement some kind of a fee structure to these
commercial bike companies either per, per bike, or concession fees, that they pay a fee to
the County of X-thousand dollars a year that could be used to put into this fund to, to
make the improvements that will make their operations safer and less inconvenient for
the general public. And that's something, again, the Kimura study I think should have
recommended to you is how to get those kind of impact fees that are specifically tied to
that operation, and how they might best be implemented.
When the design comes for the pull-outs, the State is now building pull-outs at the upper
level, far above the houses, way up on, on Haleakala Ranch land, high up. I would
recommend that we look at pull-outs for these companies at the lower level where they
really interact with the, the general public in the Kula-Makawao-Paia area.
One thing I didn't see it, and it may be in there, is a concern that I have heard from
residents and that's restroom facilities, bathrooms along that route coming down,
porta potties, or whatever they might be. And that's something, again, I would urge that
you consider how those could better be established.
I urge...lastly, a number of recommendations were made for new rules and regulations. I
would urge you to look through those and ask your legal staff to come up with the actual
verbiage, the regulations that will help implement those recommendations being made in
the study. The study says we should do this or should do that, but the actual law itself is
something that should be done, and until we actually have those in place the study is still
one of those things that's going to sit on a shelf and not be implemented. So I would urge
you to do that. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Mayer. Members, any questions for Mr. Mayer? Seeing
none, I do have...maybe I could shed some light on it, but we do have a letter from the
Department of Public Works dated August 12, 2010, and they give an estimate of how
much it will cost for the pull-outs and for the shoulder widening.

INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 13, 2010

MR. MAYER: Excellent.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah, so we have some idea, so far.
MR. MAYER: Good. And I hope that can be translated into, into the budget recommendations
that will go forth at the end of the year.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Exactly. Thank you for covering that point.
MR. MAYER: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Ms. Camille, any more signed-up testifiers?
MS. SAKAMOTO: No, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Ms. Sakamoto. So, at this time, no one signed up
additionally, but I'd like to give this opportunity to anyone in the gallery that has not
testified, this opportunity for you to come up, and you can sign up later. But looking up
into the gallery I think you all testified. So, at this time, Members, without any objection
the Chair will close testimony.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No objections.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Members. So ordered.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR MEDEIROS: At this time, Members, we're going to go to the Director of Public Works,
but before I do that I'd like to share some information with you. And, as we know, this
matter, this item was referred to the Committee by Councilmember Baisa. The
Infrastructure Management Committee met on this item on June 14, 2010, and
August 2, 2010. And today, Members, is the third meeting on this item.
After two bike tour fatalities in Haleakala National Park, the Park Service has issued a
moratorium on bike tours in the National Park. Copies of the findings, reports, and
decisions are on the park website at www.nps, standing for National Parks Service...so
it's www.nps.gov/hale . So that information is available to all the Members.
And so, at this time, I'd like to have the Director of Public Works, Mr. Milton Arakawa,
provide an overview of this item. Director, if you would, please?
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As you noted, the, the item before you pertains to a
downhill bicycle tour study, which was done by Kimura International, Inc., for the
County of Maui. An overview of the plan was presented at the last, excuse me, the last
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Committee meeting of August 2, 2010. I do have several general comments for the
Committee.
As you all know, the issue of downhill bicycle tours has been a longstanding issue within
the County perhaps since the 1980s. State legislation enacted in 2007 allows for adoption
and provision for the enforcement of ordinances regulating bicycle tours on State and
County highways. The Council appropriated $250,000 in Fiscal Year 2008 for a
downhill bike tour study. On that basis, Kimura International, Inc., was selected to
formulate the plan. And the plan that you have before you is the product of a thorough
planning process, which included significant citizen participation.
There are short-term, medium-term, and long-term recommendations in the plan.
However, the plan, by itself, as you know, does not implement anything. But the
significant point is that it does establish a general framework by which downhill bicycle
tours can and should operate within the County of Maui. This operational framework has
been missing for the last 20 plus years.
If you, if you review the short-term recommendations, a number of these
recommendations will require drafting of ordinances. We will be responsible for the
drafting of these ordinances once the Council gives us some indication as to approval of
the plan or approval of the plan with modifications. In the longer term, if there are
capital improvements on County roads, which are recommended, there would be budget
implications and the appropriate requests for funding will be made. As far as capital
improvements on State roads, the State Department of Transportation will be responsible
for implementation.
The Department has one comment on shoulder widening. We have provided that in an
August 12, 2010 letter to the Committee. The plan recommends pull-outs for bike tours
on Crater Road and Haleakala Highway, which are State roadways. And the construction
costs, as estimated in the plan, would be $40,000 per pull-out. However, on Baldwin
Avenue, which is a County roadway, three longer and more expensive shoulder widening
areas are recommended. The shoulder widening would involve utility relocation,
drainage improvements, and traffic control. And the plan notes that costs are estimated to
range from $200,000 to $470,000, for each shoulder widening.
So we believe it is difficult to justify spending this amount of money for each shoulder
widening on County roads when pull-outs are satisfactory on State roadways. The plan
does mention that costs would be lower if shoulder improvements are shortened,
essentially providing pull-outs. So our recommendation is to implement pull-outs on
Baldwin Avenue as well.
With us this morning we have Sergeant Aoki from the Police Department; Glenn Kimura
and Nancy Nishikawa from Kimura International here...are here to answer any questions
regarding the plan, and also Nolly Yagin from our Engineering Division is here. We
would recommend that the Committee review and give us some indication as to how we
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would...you would like the Administration to proceed as far as implementation of the
plan, if we can. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Director Arakawa. Members, before I open it for...open up
the floor for questioning, I'd like to ask, Sergeant Aoki, you have any opening comments
you'd like to make, at this time?
MR. AOKI: Good morning, Committee Chair and Council Members. I'm Sergeant Aoki with
the Maui Police Department, the Traffic Section. We did a study or Officer Mahoney
had submitted a study, I think it was back in 2006, and some of the suggestions or things
in the study looked pretty good, but then some of the things will be costing us money. So
depending on how you want us to proceed we're open to suggestions.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Sergeant Aoki. Members, now the floor is open for
discussion and questions. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair, and thank you for having this
meeting today. First question I have is...I don't know who I direct this to, I guess
Mr. Arakawa. How many permittees do we have at the present time?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Baisa, I don't have that question...the answer to that
question off-hand. Our consultants are here and perhaps I can refer the questions on the
formulation of the plan to them. So maybe I should call up either Mr. Kimura or
Ms. Nishikawa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's fine with me if the Chair would allow.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. What, what we'll do is if we do call them up, then, Members, be
prepared to ask them the questions while they're up here. And I might say the study
indicates, when they did it, that there were eight license-permitted bicycle companies.
Whether there's new or additional I'm not sure -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --since the study was done.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct, and it's been a while.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: So if we could have Mr. Kimura come up for questions about the study.
Mike, can you help her?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh.
MR. KIMURA: Good morning.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning.
MR. KIMURA: My name is Glenn Kimura, President of Kimura International, and here with me
is Nancy Nishikawa, Vice-President of Kimura International as well. With respect to
your question as to the number of permittees during...that are...have permits for this
industry, during the time of the study we found that there were three.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: There were three?
MR. KIMURA: Three.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much. Now, a related questioned, and I
don't know if it's for you or for Mr. Arakawa, but in the testimony from Mr. Feliciano,
Phil Feliciano, he puts heavy emphasis on the fact that probably a lot of this could be
solved by a different or a better improved permit process. Who conducts that permit
process? Which department?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Director Arakawa, would you like to respond to that or, or the consultant?
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair, actually the, the permit process right now is handled through the
Department of Finance So we'd have to basically revise that in working with that
Department.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So Department of Finance would then, if we were to work on a
different or an improved permit process, they would be the folks to administer?
MR. ARAKAWA: The current provision of the Code require that, and it's up to the Council
whether you want to have it changed or amended.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I find it kind of interesting that Mr. Medeiros mentioned that in a
study there were eight, and we're told that there's three. What's the discrepancy? Can
anybody explain?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: I...I'm trying to find out where I saw that, but if the consultant...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's a significant difference.
MR. KIMURA: There are seven companies that run these operations -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. KIMURA: --but we found only three had permits at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. Important information for us to know.
You know, there's been a lot of conversation, and I know that you already heard it in
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testimony this morning and these are about the rogue companies that are doing all kinds
of innovative things and, you know, selling bicycles to people and, you know, doing all
kinds of funny stuff. And I think that a lot of the trouble we've seen, you know, could be
laid at the door of that. So I think that's a major issue that we need to think about while
we're trying to solve the problems that we've heard. You know, I think that the majority
of the bigger companies will work with us, because, you know, they have a lot of
investment, and they have a lot to lose by not being able to regulate this industry properly
so that we can co-exist on the roads of Upcountry.
But I don't know what we do about people that are just doing their own thing up and
down the road and comes the issue, of course, that we heard about enforcement. How do
we deal with enforcement? And that...that's a major concern for me, Chair, is that, you
know, we can make the best rules in the world, but unless we have the ability to monitor
those rules...you know, if you go up and down these roads every day I certainly
understand that this is a very important industry to us. People, and we've heard it during
the previous discussions about the bikes, how much people enjoy that, how they love it,
and how many people come to Maui specifically because they want to ride down the
volcano.
So, you know, we have to be sensitive to our visitor industry. We certainly don't want to
hurt it, but we also have to be sensitive to the residents of Upcountry who are putting up
with this inconvenience.
Another question that I wanted to ask, Mr. Kimura, was there was a comment made by
Mr. Mayer, and it was also mentioned by Mr. Muschietti, who mentioned a tax.
Mr. Mayer said that he thought we should have spent more time in costs on this...in this
study. Do you have any information you can share with us from your experience about
how cost is handled in other municipalities? Do people tax bikes? Do they charge them
more for a permit? Now, how do we do this so that we're not putting the burden on
people who don't ride bikes?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Kimura?
MR. KIMURA: That's a tough question.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's our question. We got to figure it out. We could, we could
use some help, thank you.
MR. KIMURA: It's something we need to think about. I don't know, Nancy, if you got
anything else to add on that because the...you know, one of the ideas was to have a
surcharge on the industry, but we sort of shied away from that, because we didn't...as
you say, we don't want to harm the industry itself that was going through a downturn at
this time. You know, it becomes an issue for budgeting for the Council and the
Administration on how you regulate the industry, but trying to make them pay their way,
we've heard that the industry, itself, is paying taxes like everybody else is. So...and, you
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know, paying taxes to use roads as well. So it's a really tough question at this
. . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So nothing really comes to mind of what other people are doing
to pay for these kinds of things?
MR. KIMURA: No, none of the other...you know, we try to look at other types of industries in
the State and there are, you know, as I mentioned, somebody's trying to do something on
Kauai, but that's just in infant, infant stages right now.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, thank you, you know, very much for trying to answer the
question, I appreciate it. Mr. Chair, obviously we have serious financial issues. You
know, when we heard about the costs of, my goodness, widening the shoulders, that's not
something easy, and I certainly understand why Mr. Arakawa says it's probably better to
do the pull-outs. Forty thousand is a lot more affordable than 200 to 400...almost half a
million dollars for shoulder widening, so that we can accommodate the industry. But
we've got a lot of research to do here before we can make decisions. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Baisa. And as the area representative I am certain
you get a lot of concerns and questions to you from the community But I'd like to
follow-up your question with Mr. Kimura, because it was brought up
that...Mister...Director Arakawa brought up that the study recommended pull-outs, but
on Baldwin Avenue you're recommending a couple miles of widening. Why was that?
Why wasn't pull-outs...
MR. KIMURA: The reason we did that was because there was enough...there was an
opportunity to widen the shoulders there because the, the right-of-way was wide enough.
So a wider shoulder along the entire length is a lot safer and easier for the industry and
bikers, in general, to use. But as our study, you know, also says that there's an option of
not doing it, and pulling it back, and just doing pull-outs as well. So either way it works
okay.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah, I think because Director Arakawa's concern was that in
looking at the proposed widening it would potentially involve utility relocations, removal
of large trees, and so forth. So looking at the cost from 200,000 to 400,000, that's quite a
cost for us at this time. So, but thank you for your response on that. Members, any other
questions for...okay, Member Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Kimura, some of the bikeways are
on State highways and a lot of them are on County roadways. Have you had an
opportunity to talk to the Department of Transportation in regards to how they plan, and
how they get their funding in creating pull-outs or that extra lane for a bike lane? Do, do
you know if the State have received any grants from the Federal government or, or is
there a Federal program that provide funding for bike paths as well as pull-outs?
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MS. NISHIKAWA: You know, I think...yeah, the, the best person to answer that would be
Charlene Shibuya from Department of Transportation.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I, I know when some of the road improvements are made
they go through a Federal aid project process. And through that process, you know,
there's utility relocation, and I, I don't know about bike paths and pull-outs that are...you
know, if those things are put into a road improvement project, but something that we can
ask the Department of Transportation.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yes, Member Pontanilla, if you'll hold that question.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: When we're done with the Kimura consultants, we can bring Ms. Shibuya
down.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Any other questions for the Kimura consultants? Member Molina
followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: My apologies, Chair, my question was for the Department,
Mr. Arakawa.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Oh, certainly. Yeah, they're up here now.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: . . .(Inaudible). . . Okay. Thank you. Mr. Arakawa, in
testimony we heard Mr. Mayer mention the issue of gasoline taxes, you know, to, to fund
a lot of these projects, pull-outs, or shoulder widening, et cetera. With regards to your
Department's recommendations to go for pull-outs, and it's more the financial question,
do we have sufficient funding or will the Administration, whether it be this one or a
future administration have to look at increasing the gas tax? And, and I bring this up,
Mr. Chairman, because for years I've always been very sensitive about that, because it
impacts our residents who live Upcountry, who have to come down, work in Central
Maui, or South Maui, or West Maui.
So it's, it's an issue that's always brought to my attention. So whenever there's any
consideration of having to adjust the gas taxes, my constituents certainly pay attention to
that. So, you know, right now we certainly don't need any additional increases, whether
it be gas taxes, or other types of taxes. So if I could just kind of get a...an, an...a
comment from Director Arakawa in terms of our finances and what we can afford in
terms of pull-outs without having to adjust the fuel tax.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Director?
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MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina, as I mentioned in the testimony, the costs of the
shoulder widening would be a concern, and as Mr. Mayer mentioned in his testimony, the
funding for shoulder widening or any kind of bikeway improvements actually come from
the fuel tax. Basically, the, the folks that fill up gas in your car pay 16 cent a gallon tax
to the County and that's what is the major driver to actually fund these improvements.
So, just in general and to answer your question in a larger context, the general trend to go
to more fuel efficient vehicles, even hybrid vehicles, or perhaps even electric vehicles has
already had an impact on fuel tax revenues and will continue, probably, to have an impact
on fuel tax revenues. So it is a concern for us and that's why we are raising this with the,
the Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Director. And this is just additional
food for thought for us, Mr. Chairman. I guess the next Council that will have to wrestle
with if this is the direction we want to go as far as adding more pull-outs, which, you
know, if we want something it has to be paid for. And just so the...you know, our
constituents understand that if we want these improvements, especially if it relates to
safety improvements, as well as, you know, augmenting this industry, that is something
that the...all constituents will have to face that, you know, a future Council may have to
consider raising the fuel tax. But I can tell you this, the folks in Upcountry, and I guess
any... anybody who lives out in the rural areas that have to come to the core area of
Central Maui to work, gas is certainly always a sensitive issue. So anytime there's a
consideration to raise or adjust, our constituents will let us know what their feelings are.
So, anyway, thank you, Mr. Director. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Molina. And, yeah, we too in East Maui have a very
challenging concern about gas prices, because, you know, we're at $5, you know, a
gallon. To get out here is a lot of money, you know, and I'm sure Molokai and Lanai are
pretty much the same. So, Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. And just to comment on the
previous comment about gas. It's funny, it's serendipitous. Yesterday I was looking at
my credit card statement and adding up my gas, because I've always wondered. You
know, you just hand them the credit card, you pay the statement, because in there, there's
a whole bunch of stuff. You don't really pay attention. And when I added up how much
we pay for, for gasoline in a month between my husband and myself, I couldn't believe
how much money we spend. It's just really amazing. Because, you know, when you live
far away no matter, you got to go up and down, and you got to pay. And neither of us has
a large car. I mean we have small cars, and I can't imagine what it would be like if we
had a big SUV or something, but, anyway, neither here nor there. It's already very
expensive, and to look at a gas tax is really not acceptable at the moment. So I think we
better keep that in mind when we think about how we're going to do these things.
For Mr. Kimura. Mr. Kimura, one of the recommendations that was made early this
morning, and I wondered about it, was one of the suggestions was to limit the number of
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tours. Did you look at this and any comments on that? Of course, I'm kind of afraid of it
because, you know, I don't want to hurt our visitor industry, but did you look at it and
what are your thoughts?
MR. KIMURA: We, we did look at that issue. We have three sets of recommendations: high,
medium, and long-term. The issue of limiting the number of tours falls under our
recommendations for further consideration, that's a long-term one, which says, you
know, restrict the number of tourists allowed. The...if, if the industry or if the permit
regulations require spacing between the tours, I think that will go a long way of solving
some of the problems you have right now.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good point. You know, it's really interesting because if we're
going to limit the number of tours, Chair, this morning I thought it was interesting to hear
that, you know, they found seven companies and only three of them permitted. You
know, if we could deal with that aspect, then we would have three legal companies
operating instead of seven operating. And so, it appears that the permit and the
enforcement piece of this study is key if we're going to get a handle around what's
happening.
And then the other thing I wanted to ask you about was I attended the first or...I think it
was the first meeting that you had with the community I wasn't able to attend the second
one. And at that meeting I was in one of the discussion groups and there was a lot of talk
about the licensing or the credentials of the people that lead the tours. And there was a
question about possibly drug testing those people. What happened to that during the
study?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Kimura?
MR. KIMURA: We have that under...that's another long-term recommendation. So we have
that under develop credential and monitoring program as well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see. And so, that was felt that that was a longer term. And
when you say longer term, did you have a number of years in mind?
MR. KIMURA: Not exactly, no. I think...we think that once you start implementing some
short-term regulations and mid-term, you know, just moving up the, up the
recommendation ladder there that as you see improvements, you know, perhaps you don't
have to be so onerous about over regulating.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, I don't want to be argumentative, but wouldn't it be a
quick fix to make sure that everybody that's on the road is, is okay?
MR. KIMURA: Oh yeah, I mean I, I would agree with that, yeah. It's, it's your purview. If you
want to move that up to the short-term, you know...
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Be easier than building a pull-out.
MR. KIMURA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It would cost a lot less and take a lot less time.
MR. KIMURA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But, anyway, again, you know, we don't want to beat this to
death. Thank you very much, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Member Baisa. And because I didn't want to give you
inaccurate information, I went back and found that they listed bike companies, they listed
eight. They didn't say if the bike companies were permitted or not on, on this page, but it
did list Bike It Maui, Cruiser Phil's, Haleakala Bike Company, Maui Cyclery, Maui
Downhill, Maui Mountain Cruisers, Maui Sunriders, and Mountain Riders. So that's on
the study, but it didn't say if, you know, who was permitted or not.
The other part that we got to remember is the unguided tours. There's probably a lot of
them that are not listed here. So that's another concern with that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: For, for a while, Chair, that was a major concern and everybody
was focused on the unescorted -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Unguided, unescorted.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --you know, folks just doing their thing, and I don't hear too
much about it anymore, but I'm sure it's still an issue, and I think it's something that we
have to deal with when we come up with regulations and permits.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Right. Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: To me, if you're not legal, and you don't have the insurance and
the permit, and whatever, then there should be some serious consequence. It might be a
good way to build a fund. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah, and I guess the loophole is that they're not escorting these people,
that they are free-range riders, you know, they just rent it from those bike companies. So
somehow we have to find a way of being sure that we can...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, well, I think it's really interesting because this may be just
rumor, because, you know, you hear all kinds of things all the time, but they're actually
selling the bike to the person for the day so that it wasn't them who would be liable. But
if you're an owner of a bike, and you want to ride up and down the hill that's up to you,
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but then buying the bike back at the end of the day. And, you know, that's the kind of
stuff that, you know, we got to get a handle on. That's not good.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah. Yeah, I think, yeah, we, we have to look at legislation. And then
also, you know, in the 2000 State law, the 46-16.3, it gives the County the authority to
limit the number of tours, the number of bicycles within a tour, scheduling of tours,
physical spacing of tours, rules of the road, health and safety requirements, equipment
maintenance, driver and guide qualifications, driver and guide drug testing, accident
procedures and reporting, and financial responsibility requirements. So under the State
law the counties have that authority to develop that kind of legislation, and I think that
will help us along.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I did hear very positive vibes today, and I think the industry
wants to work with us.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think we have the players in this room. These are the people
that really care, are affected by it, and have the knowledge. And we have the study, and I
think that it's really important that we get everybody together, agree on some of the
things that we can agree, implement them, and maybe work on other things for longer
term. But I think we need to move on this. It's been too long and the same issues come
up over, and over, and over. So time to make some use of the money we've spent. And,
like I said, I think we have the players, and we should get them together, get their
recommendations, and go.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Member Baisa. Other questions for either the
Department or Kimura consultants? Okay. Council Chair Mateo followed by
Member Kaho `ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Kimura, in an earlier
discussion the Committee spent some time talking about the qualifications of the rider as
a potential issue in, in addressing some of the concerns that the Committee had, and yet
the report really does not go in that direction other than the area of a potential
recommendation for elimination. And in that potential for elimination there is that one
area that recognizes the potential elimination of, or to regulate participant qualification.
Can, can you kind of help me understand why that was not a significant part, and whether
or not this potential elimination is based on your recommendation for an expanded video
safety training program?
MR. KIMURA: I'll have Nancy answer that question.
MS. NISHIKAWA: After speaking extensively with the bicycle...the companies that do the
downhill tours we felt that, you know, the issue of rider qualification is something that
they're very concerned about. Most of them or all of them have some way of screening
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out or filtering qualified riders. We felt that that was most appropriately something that,
you know, they would handle themselves. You know, it's, it's related to their liability
issues, their operational issues, and so, you know, that's where we made the decision to
eliminate it from sort of a government issue to more of an issue for the private business.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So it goes back to, to enforcement, how certain particulars are
enforced. Just like a recommendation for the Police Department that requires greater...or
more...or increased police enforcement as recommendation for further consideration. So
this is kind of subjective in nature with, with some of your recommendations, and for
myself your recommendations carries a lot of weight, because, you know, you're the
professionals telling us these are, you know, like sound principles for us to adopt as part
of policy or part of ordinance, and yet I don't know how we're going to enforce. I don't
know how we're going to limit ourselves with certain participant qualifications, because
these are all important components in us being able to develop ordinance that would,
would be sound in principle. Otherwise, we continuously adopt ordinances and law
without teeth.
So it's, it's really difficult for me to understand how we're going to implement some of
these when it doesn't come with some kind of a rationale as to how you, how you devise
this. And perhaps if I go back to the...looking at the participants, perhaps the companies,
you know, just prefer doing their videos as training, as being recommended here, but I, I
think somebody's got to take a hardball look at the individual's ability to actually come
down that hill.
MS. NISHIKAWA: Oh, yeah. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So I, I think your recommendation in terms of that and the
recommendation to eliminate causes me a little concern with that particular
. . .(inaudible). . .
MS. NISHIKAWA: Oh, yeah, it's not saying that it's not an important issue, but it's saying that
in terms of what's the proper purview for regulation that that might...you know, again,
it's difficult for government to enforce.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
MS. NISHIKAWA: And whether or not you then want to take over the, the liability for, for that
kind of enforcement rather than having the companies themselves be responsible for
determining what's a qualified rider. I think that's where we decided that that really is -COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The government's call.
MS. NISHIKAWA: --an industry responsibility.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And, and that's why we're here; right? The industry has
had a hard time in trying to regulate itself. So...
MS. NISHIKAWA: But over time they've done a better job.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes. Yes. Especially when we take a look at the accident
report from the Police Department. That actually from 2005 had a high of 24 incidents
to, to today with right now five. So the incidents has, has diminished, but it's real clear
that it is in the unguided sector that the majority of the incidents occur, and your
recommendations towards the unguided kind of, like, put it all together and that's not
reality. The reality is there is two different issues, the guided and the unguided. So,
thank you very much. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Council Chair Mateo. Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. I wanted to have some
thoughts about the recommendation to regulate the spacing...you know, if you're saying
that that's one of the things that could help to manage. And, you know, given the, the,
the distance of road coming down, what would be a recommendation for spacing?
MR. KIMURA: Let us look that up.
MS. NISHIKAWA: Yeah, we had a section on that where we looked at some hypothetical
spacing. We looked at both five- and ten-minute intervals between tour groups. And, for
example, on Crater Road where the, the speed...bicycle speeds are a little slower, we
would see distances between groups of between 7 mile at a five-minute interval between
tour groups or 1.4 mile for an interval of ten minutes. So, so those are sort of the range of
options that we, we looked at.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And then given that...let's look at the
ten-minute interval. Then given that scenario, then what are we talking about, let's say
in, in, in an eight hour day? Is that something that you would consider?
MS. NISHIKAWA: Well, I think what we're looking at especially would be during the peak
period.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. NISHIKAWA: Like right after the, the groups view the sunrise. And so, if we're looking at
ten-minute interval we're looking essentially at six groups coming down -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Six groups -MS. NISHIKAWA: --per hour.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --per hour. Okay. Okay. I mean in looking at
that, because we're dealing with guided and unguided, perhaps, and that would be one
way of trying to manage.
MS. NISHIKAWA: That...that's for the groups, but in terms of the independent tours they
would sort of fall in between the groups.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: They wouldn't be regulated? I don't
understand...
MS. NISHIKAWA: Not in terms...I think it would be more difficult to regulate than in terms of
spacing. You know, that's something that needs to be discussed further. You know, the
specific technicalities of how you would actually...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And then I'm not sure if this is within
your area, but part of the testimony given today was looking at some of the, the driver
safety and the issue of looking at CDL, you know, licensing as a means of trying to
ensure that the driver's themselves for the groups are conducting. Is that something you,
you gave any consideration or, or thought to?
MS. NISHIKAWA: Right. So, so we looked at developing best practices for drivers and how
they should work with their vans and coordinate with the group leaders for these bicycle
tours. So, again, that...I mean there are lots of ideas already floating around about the
best ways of running these tours and how the drivers should operate. And so, it's a
question of pulling those best practices together.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And then do you think what was being suggested
by the testifier was something that should be given consideration?
MS. NISHIKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you. Okay. Chair, thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. I went back to my office because, you
know, I was Chairman for Public Works at one time and one of the biggest issues was
what we're talking this morning. And I do have a Bike Plan Hawaii that was made by the
Department of Transportation, State of Hawaii, and this is dated 2003, and there's lot of
good information. I, I don't know if Kimura International utilized the State plan in
regards to some of the findings that they did.
And, Chairman, you know, this is not only good reading, but it tells you the...about the
funding and, and how, you know, construction should be made in regards to bike lanes,
bike paths. It doesn't say about pull-outs though. So if we can get more copies for the
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Committee Members at least, you know, we can have a better understanding of what the
State had envisioned in regards to utilizing bike as a mode of transportation. So,
Mr. Kimura, did you guys take a look at this here?
MR. KIMURA: We did that study.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, you did that study. Eh, terrific.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: How about some copies of this study so that each of us can have
it?
MR. KIMURA: You want extra copies?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. KIMURA: That's the, that's abridged version. Yeah, we can get.
MS. NISHIKAWA: We'll...yeah. ..
MR. KIMURA: We'll ask DOT if we can get more copies.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good, because good information.
MR. KIMURA: Well, you know, I apologize. We didn't mean to just not answer your question
at that time, but we just felt since Charlene was here that she would give you the most,
you know -VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. KIMURA: --appropriate way to answer that question, but we did prepare that study. You
know, we spent a lot of time and effort on it, and tried to work with DOT on the whole
issue of bikes.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good. Yeah, and according to your study there's some
restrictions about utilizing, I guess, government funds, just by reading this bike plan that
was made by you folks. So thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Other Members? Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, thank you. The question has been raised, and I don't
know if it is found in this document about how to fund projects. Is that...we heard from
the public how to do it, but do you have recommendations specifically how to fund it
now that you heard the Public Works Director talk about what needs to be done in your
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recommendations on, say, Baldwin Avenue, and it being a very expensive endeavor?
How does your study address funding or does it?
MS. NISHIKAWA: We estimated costs for the hard projects, so the physical improvements.
We didn't estimate costs for... soft costs like organizational costs, program
administration. And in that case, in terms of physical improvements, there are a number
of programs that...you know, the State has a...has access to different funding sources.
The County also, for bicycle projects can tap into some of these program funding sources
such as transportation enhancement, and other Federal and State sources in addition to,
you know, the County's capital improvement sources.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So that was very general. So you're saying that in no way do
you recommend how to fund other than look at State projects or State programs that may
give you assistance? And all...if all of this does not address the total funding, do you
have any recommendations to us on how to do it?
MS. NISHIKAWA: We would go back to some of the sources that were mentioned
. . .(inaudible due to interruption).. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is, is raising the gasoline tax a possible way to fund things in
your recommendation?
MS. NISHIKAWA: It could be, but we didn't address that in the study.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, so you don't...you remain silent? The, the, the concern
that I have in another area is the Police Department study in, in regards to...under 1-8,
summary and recommendations, and I take that 1.6.1 is the Maui Police Department
study by Mr. Mahoney, and then your summary and recommendations are coming from
the Police Department along with you people? Right now it says "Set rider requirements;
number of riders per tour to a maximum of 12, establish a minimum age limit of 16 and
impose stricter requirements on physical ability to perform this activity."
You obviously had some concern with what is now, and how these tours are operating in
regards to the age of a participant. They are allowing people that are under the age of 16
to ride, ride on our public highways? Question.
MS. NISHIKAWA: What was the question; I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Are people...because the, the, the, the recommendation is to
set a minimum age of 16. Is it because people under the age of 16 are allowed to operate
a bicycle on a State, or County, or Federal highway? Is that what is occurring, they're
under the age of 16?
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MS. NISHIKAWA: Some of the bicycle companies do allow them on their tours, but also, in
general, you know, in the community kids ride bicycles on State . . .(inaudible due to
interruption).. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I understand that. I understand that. But in this situation could
there be a liability concern, because you also say physical ability to perform this activity?
In other words, people that may be under the age of 16, on a local road, they know that
local road, but this is the first time somebody's coming down Haleakala Highway, I
would think first time that they're riding a bike. So why this recommendation also for the
physical ability to perform this activity? In other words, you, you ask us to look at this.
Tell us the reason why. What, what, what insighted [sic] you to put this in? Are you
concerned that somebody has a physical problem, maybe has an eye problem and, and
can't see and yet they're riding this when they don't...they're not allowed to drive
a...have a motor vehicle license? Is that a concern?
MR. KIMURA: What you're referring to is what we just...we summarized the Police
Department study by Officer Mahoney.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. KIMURA: So those were just his recommendations.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, so we should ask the Police Department then.
MR. KIMURA: Yeah. Well, we were just summarizing what that study said, and that referred
to the qualifications of the rider and the age.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Because I, I definitely have a, a concern. So are you,
are you saying that you don't want to answer that question or can you... shall I ask, ask it
of the Police Department?
MR. KIMURA: What's...is the question that we are not recommending people younger than 16
to, to participate in tours?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I, I have a concern and that's the reason why it's here. I'm,
I'm just...see, I'm looking at what is occurring now and, and, and then I look at your
short-term and long-term recommendations, okay. But if there is a concern by the Police
Department saying that, hey, you know, some of these people can't drive a car and
yet...because they've got vision problems, so they don't have a driver's license, or some
of these people may be, and I don't know if age or any kind of physical handicap that
they have they're not allowed to operate a motor vehicle and yet they may be allowed to
do this on the first time.
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My, my question obviously is safety and County liability. If, if this is now allowed and
should something like an accident occur, of course, the County is the deep pockets for
such a suit. So is that a reason why?
MR. KIMURA: Well, I, I guess it's a very difficult issue to try to restrict the age of a participant
coming down on a, on a, on a tour...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Uh-huh.
MR. KIMURA: ...when you look at the number of kids that are riding bicycles. Right now
there's a big movement to allow kids to ride bicycles to school and that goes, you know,
down to elementary level. As long as they can ride a bike, they have all the rights to be
on the roadway as well. It's a matter of whether or not the parents, you know, feel safe
about that happening.
So when we talked to the industry people too, we find that a lot of kids can ride better
than adults...you know, they're, they're into these extreme sports and things like that. So
they are a lot more skilled than, than the normal adult is. So to try to say that somebody
younger than 16 cannot ride a bike down on a tour like that we, we did not subscribe to
that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And then the physical ability in regards to an individual.
Do companies right now see if people have a valid driver's license or whatever so that
they know at least that in riding a bicycle they don't have any kind of physical concerns?
Is that something that the companies require?
MR. KIMURA: The companies self-regulate on that right now. What they, what they do is
before when, when they had the opportunity to use the parking lot up at the park to have
the participants ride around there, they could observe and see if they could ride a bike.
Because if you ask any adult if they have...if they want to ride this bike, and they're
going to pay for it, they're going to say, of course, we rode the bike. They could have
ridden the bike the last time 30 years, you know, ago, but then they feel like they're,
they're paying for something.
So what happens is the, the industry they look at how the biker is riding. If they feel that
they are not capable of doing it, they would make a suggestion that they not do it. And
because they don't have the parking lot right now what they need to do, unfortunately, is
observe the bikers as they first start going down the hill. And the, the, the van driver is in
communications with the, the leader, and if they see somebody incapable of riding the
bike, they will pull that person off.
So it's a very difficult issue in terms of just saying that, okay, you are, you know...how,
how would we say that you're a housewife or somebody that...you know, you, you just
got to ask them questions and if they, they say they can do it, it's very difficult to have, in
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writing, that, you know, if you are 55 years old or...you know, I, I don't know how we
would do that.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Nishiki, let, let me intervene by saying this. That you can be a person
with disabilities and still have a driver's license, because you can have accommodations
made to the vehicle so that you still can drive, but it may not be that your disabilities
allow you on the bike. So I think what Mr. Kimura is saying is the bike companies play
an important role in assessing that, that they need to look at the person and, and see if
they're capable of riding downhill. But, Mr. Nishiki, if you allow me...you have more
questions; otherwise...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: One, one last question.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. We're going to take a break because we've been doing this for an
hour and a half now.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. The, the, the concern is one that is guided and one that
is unguided. Is that something that you looked at or did you just look at a guided tour
with the vehicle and people?
MR. KIMURA: Yeah, we, we looked at both guided and unguided. And when we held our, our
meetings, and we did hold interviews with these different companies, we did reach out to
the unguided companies as well.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and their participation also?
MR. KIMURA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And, and their...those concerns compared to the guided
were they very different, because I don't see one with guided recommendations and
unguided, or they all fall into the set of recommendations?
MR. KIMURA: Well, a lot of the...once you have a regulation and permit system in place the
unguided will have to comply with those as well: insurance, you know, all of the
different kinds of rules of the road, equipment, and so forth.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. At this time, we...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, yeah, I know you going to go take a break, but I
just want to ask one question; if I may--not of them, but of you -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that I've waited all this time to ask some specific
questions.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Well, we have some people up here that cannot just walk out to take
care... yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, that's why I don't want them to leave. That's why
these are the questions I want to ask some of these people that are here. So after the
break if I could get recognized -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Surely you'll be the first.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --thank you. And then, then I can ask some questions.
Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Members, we're going to take a 15-minute break and return at
10:45. This meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel). . .

RECESS:

10:30 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:47 a.m.

CHAIR MEDEIROS: . . . (gavel). . . Members, thank you for that short break. The meeting of
the Infrastructure Committee on September 13, 2010 is now reconvened after the recess.
And I know we had Member Victorino that wanted to be the first to be called upon
for...here he comes. So he's going to be recognized for his questions, and he'll be at his
desk shortly. And I believe we still...oh, we have Ms. Shibuya still here waiting for our
questions. So, Member Victorino, proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank, thank you, Chair. Mr. Kimura, I thank you for all
the information and many questions have been asked and answered to the best of your
ability. Again, you've done, and from what all the research I can do, is you've done a lot
of, what you call, suggestions and, and ideas, and, and other means for which we can now
take a look at, at deriving a orderly fashion for these, these bike tours. And I understand
there's guided and unguided, and I'm not going to go in there.
Let me start by saying, first of all, the line of questioning asked by the prior Council
member. Like you, Mr. Chair, I have many years of experience in different industries
and one of them happen to be the bike tour. And you're absolutely correct, when we
used to be able to use the park, that was our means to determine how well or how
competent a rider was. Now, you're basically starting outside of the park, which is close
to the switchbacks which, if anybody has ever gone up on that mountain, I can tell you
the worse place to start anybody off on the bike tour is the switchbacks, 'cause they're
quick, and they come up at you fast, and they're quick turns. So kind of a bad mix the
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way it is right now. So we really would need, eventually, some kind of means to make
sure these people are qualified.
And you are right also. I have asked many times when I did these tours, as a driver, I
would ask the guys, you know how to ride a bike? And they say, yeah, I ride 'em all the
time, and then they get into problems. And then you ask them again, when was the last
time you rode a bike? Oh, 20 years ago. I don't know how you can ride a bike all the
time if it was 20 years ago, you know, but they pay big money, and they want the
experience, and I think that's the challenge. How do you determine experience, and
reality, and preventing them from hurting themselves? And it's not only in this industry.
Whether it's water industries and other industries, I think the Police Department can
attest many of the accidents that occur is because of the inability of the individual who
partakes in the actual activity itself.
Okay. So that all being said and done, what I wanted to get more in tune is I've heard gas
tax and other means of raising money for the expenses of some of the improvements that
you are suggesting, but I heard some of the testifiers, I at least know one for sure, saying
that the bike companies should be the one that are directly taxed, or directly charged, or
directly somehow made to pay some of, if not most of, these improvements that we're
discussing.
Do you believe that...you know, the old saying, user beware and user pay? Would you
say that user pay would be the best way? In other words, these are the people that using
it, these are the people that going to partake and enjoy, and somehow they pay for these
various improvements. Would you not say that's a better methodology than gas or, or
other taxes for which the individual residents, who have some benefit, but very little,
would be a part of the, the, the financial picture? Would you say that would be a better
idea, Mr. Kimura? And that wasn't a trick question, promise.
MR. KIMURA: That's a hard question. By user pay, you know, you're talking about a surtax or
something like that that would get into the...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Some kind of fee, yeah.
MR. KIMURA: Yeah, a fee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Something that...yeah.
MR. KIMURA: Yeah. I...you know, I'm going to say right now that I am not equipped to
answer that question.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. KIMURA: I think...and then I hate to say this, but our scope of work really didn't get into
that kind of issue, because we're planners and, you know, we do a lot of bike kind of
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stuff, but we don't get into the actual areas of how we go about funding these things and
so forth, or, or, you know, getting revenue for them aside from just knowing different
sources.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. KIMURA: To be able to answer that in a fair manner I think we would have to have an
economist on our team, somebody that would actually be able to look at revenues,
expenses, and so forth, and to see if even a 10 percent surcharge would make an impact.
So I'm afraid I have to punt on that, that question.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, no, no problem. And, and I, I don't mind you
punting 'cause that's something maybe we have to, you know, as we go along, Mr. Chair,
have someone come in, have some economist or somebody who has some experience or
knowledge looking at all the numbers that would be necessary to do these improvements
and how that would come about in that area.
The other question I had for you, and, and, and I'll, I'll let you guys...I mean that will
pretty much satisfy my, my, my, my question, my line of questioning, is all this studies
have been given out to all the various groups as I've heard. Have any of these groups
called upon you to meet with them since they've gotten the study? I understand the Kula
Community Association hasn't had the time to, to really sit down and go over, and
they're asking for more time. But has anybody else asked you folks to sit down with
them, you know, like Mr. Muschietti guys, and I don't mean to use anybody's name, or
Mr. Enomoto, you know, because all these guys testified, but anybody else asked you
guys...asked your company or you, as the coordinators for this, to sit down with them
and take ideas from them or share your, your rationale in what you came up with? Has
anybody done that with you?
MR. KIMURA: No, we haven't.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. No. Okay. So I think, Mr. Chair, sometimes...you
know, they are the source, you know, and they made the study and all, all of us can read
the study, but as the line of questioning today has been and even some of the testimony
we heard, there's questions on the study and how you came with these results.
You know, for example, Chair, you said you read eight companies, yet you mentioned
only three licensed. And, you know, we hear all these different numbers. How did you
come up with the eight companies? Mr. Chair, you read the names, so obviously those
are names, but how did you come up with only three licensed and what are the others
doing? Are they groups or are they unescorted. So there's a lot of questions that I think,
if possible, I'd like to see the Kula Community Association and others get together with
you folks and the police and, and, and hash some of this out.
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I don't know where we're going to go with this today, Chair, and I don't know if it's just
for informational purposes, and I think that's what you're, you're trying to keep the
discussion going, and I appreciate that, Mr. Chair. But as a person who did these bike
rides for over five and a half years, there are some tremendous economic benefits, but
there's also some economic concerns, because no matter how you do it somebody,
especially the visitor, the experience can be great, but a tragedy can change that
experience entirely for many, many lifetimes to come.
And so, this is why I think whatever comes, the residents have to have that safety, have to
have that certainty, Mr. Chair, that they can feel comfortable, that these will be regulated,
that they won't be these rogues running around, but I do admit, Mr. Chair, it's really
hard. If somebody buys a bike or somebody's got a bike and decides to jump on the road,
like you, and I, and anybody else, we have the right to get on the road. Whether we know
what we're doing or not is another story, but that is the challenge we face. But anyhow,
let us...let me not belabor the point. Thank you, Mr. Chair, for allowing me this...the,
the questioning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Member Victorino. And before I get to Member Baisa, I
just want to say to the Members once we're done with Mr. Kimura and Ms. Nishikawa,
then we'll excuse them, and then we're going to bring the police back forward and
Ms. Shibuya of the State DOT Highways forward. So, Member Baisa, did you have
further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, I did, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I wanted to look at little bit more at a
couple of things. First of all, I wanted to comment on the physical ability and age, just
from my own personal perspective. You know, recently there was a group in Kihei who
was going to have a bike ride, and they invited all of the candidates to come, and I just
about died laughing, because I looked at it and said, my God, I haven't been on a bike for
maybe 55 years. And, yes, I did have a bike, and I rode it a lot, but I would never venture
near a bike at this point without a lot of practice, because I probably wind up with a
broken hip, or a broken head, or something.
So, you know, I think a lot of it is personal responsibility. You know, you know your
ability, and I think...I'm sure these companies have people sign a Hold Harmless, but we
all know that that doesn't prevent them from suing when things go wrong. But, you
know, it, it's a difficult thing to set a specific age because people's physical abilities or
their driving abilities certainly change from person to person. So I think that would be a
very difficult criteria to set.
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But anyway I was looking at the cost, again, and I'm wondering...we have some people
that are permitted, not a whole lot of them, what do they pay for those permits? What is
our charge per permit?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Kimura, do you folks know or, Director Arakawa, are you aware of
that?
MR. KIMURA: Well, we, we don't, but somebody who does pay the permit fee is in the
audience. Phil...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
MR. KIMURA: ...Phil Feliciano pays his permit fees, so you could ask him.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I think it's a very relevant piece of information when
we're looking at, you know, revenues to pay for things. Could we ask, please?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Certainly. Without objections by the Members, I'll call down
Mr. Feliciano. If you'll come down to the podium, please. And once again identify
yourself and the company you represent.
MR. FELICIANO: Phil Feliciano, owner of Cruiser Phil's Volcano Riders. I have permit
number one. When the County said we need to get permits, we got there immediately,
filed our paperwork, and, and got the first permit. It's $100.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hundred dollars per year -MR. FELICIANO: Per year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --or hundred dollars forever?
MR. FELICIANO: Per year, and you have to renew annually.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it cost $100 County permit fee to operate?
MR. FELICIANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do you have to have other permits?
MR. FELICIANO: With the National Park, yes, and that one costs $250 a year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Certainly not a very viable source to look for revenues.
MR. FELICIANO: Not if only three of us are permitted.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (chuckle). . . Not if we got three legally permitted companies.
Thank you very much.
MR. FELICIANO: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I really appreciate that. That's a startling piece of information.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. While Mr. Feliciano is up here, Members, any questions for him?
Seeing none, thank you for coming forward. Member Baisa, further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Yes, along the lines of money. I think right now that, you
know, I'm beginning to feel there is a willingness to cooperate, we have a study that
gives us some, some ideas or things that we could do, at least. You know, I hate spinning
my wheels. I'd like to see some results come from this study, something that can be
done. And it was mentioned by one of the testifiers earlier, and I know I'm venturing
into very scary political waters, but there is $200,000 on the books for the, for the
Baldwin Park Greenway or whatever it is, bike path that we're talking about. I'd like to
ask Mr. Arakawa, Mr. Arakawa, what do we intend to do with this $200,000 that's set
aside this year?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Baisa, that $200,000 is set aside to do an Environmental
Assessment for the Baldwin Avenue bike path.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, at this point, it's a matter...has it been contracted already or
we're just looking?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, this is in Fiscal Year '11, so it has not been contracted.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So we would have to go through the whole process of
procurement, and finding somebody to do this process?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is it likely that this money will be spent this fiscal year? If not,
can we have it and use it for some pull-outs? We could do five and maybe appropriate
the money for the study, or I don't know, maybe it's the cart before the horse. Just trying
to find a way to pay for something.
MR. ARAKAWA: We, we would recommend against that strategy because this bike path was a
recommendation that we had formulated in conjunction with the Outdoor Circle. And as
you recall a number of years ago we had...the County had wanted to pursue bike lanes on
Baldwin Avenue, and we ran into significant community opposition from the Outdoor
Circle and as a result we had...try...we're trying to get a compromise solution which is a
bike path on Baldwin Avenue. And this is the Environmental Assessment to move
forward on that. If there is significant opposition to the project, then it should rightfully
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come out through the Environmental Assessment process rather than having one
organization delete the funding to subvert the aims of another.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand, and I know this is just the first part of a very large
expenditure. If we proceed with this thing, what is the total projected cost?
MR. ARAKAWA: The final design actually has not quite been completed yet, but it is
earmarked for future funding in the State Transportation Improvement Program. I don't
know the exact amount, but it's in the several million dollar range, but we would have to
obtain Federal funding to pay for 80 percent of the construction costs.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand. I think what I'm trying to weigh in my mind and,
you know, I don't want anybody to get nervous, because I think it's really important
when we look at any kind of issue that we look at all the alternatives. And at this point
I'm kind of thinking out loud, so whoever is in, you know, in support of the Baldwin
thing I don't want them to say, oh, Councilmember Baisa is trying to get rid of it. I'm
just trying to find alternatives. And, you know, if there's something more immediate that
we could do right away to help this bike situation, because it appears that the Baldwin
project, obviously this EIS is really important or the study that we have to do in order to
the future of the project, but we have an immediate need in front of us, and I'm trying to
figure out how we're going to pay for it.
Otherwise, you know, we keep on studying, and we keep on talking, but there's no
results. And the Upcountry people that want the Baldwin Avenue improvement are just
as, you know, desirous of what they want as the Upcountry people are that are dealing
with the impacts of the bike companies. And so, it's really tough, because we're always
trying to weigh these needs and figure out, you know, how do we take care of all of it in
these times of no money. So that's the only reason I'm asking the question, and I don't
want anybody to panic, but I think we need to look at all the opportunities, and I am
certainly...I'm in, I'm in disbelief that to run an industry of that magnitude on our
County roads costs $100 a year. I think that's a fee we might want to take a look at,
Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Baisa. And, Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. If I could ask the Director,
Mr. Arakawa? You know, earlier today you mentioned, I guess, you were seeking some
form of guidance from the Committee as to what we do as it relates to the report. Can
you offer us any thoughts that we can consider at this point, because, Mr. Chair, I want to
sort of cut through the chase at this point. You know, we've...this is, I guess, our third
meeting on the report. I think this may be the time, you know, that we take some step
forwards...some steps forward. So I'd like to ask Mr. Arakawa what, what are some
viable options for this and a future Council to consider, as it relates to the bike report,
which has, of course, been a longstanding issue or bike tours just in general for our
Upcountry community Mr. Arakawa? Thank you, Chair.
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MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina, this bike tour issue certainly has been a
longstanding issue, and the Kimura Group have...they...they've come out with a number
of recommendations, and you've heard the testimonies. Some of the recommendations
seem to have some general agreement, others are more controversial and may have some
sticking points to them. Rather than trying to resolve all of these problems through the,
the plan, which I think will take an extended amount of time, one option the Committee
may want to consider is simply to try to have the Administration or direct the
Administration to implement or, or, or at least go forward on some of the lower hanging
fruit as far as the implementation proposals are concerned and simply file the study and
have, have the Administration come back to you with specific proposals for
implementation. Because, as you said, you know, it is...been a longstanding issue. We
want to proceed on implementation at this point rather than trying to iron out all of the
problems through the plan. I, I think it's more prudent if we actually try to proceed with
some of the low-hanging fruit and try to, try to find some improvements to the current
situation.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Director, and I, I can appreciate
moving forward that way. We, we already heard all the pluses and very small minuses
with the report. Overall, it's a good report, and I guess whether it be, you know, this term
or next term that the Council consider future legislation that will be proposed by the
Administration or at least initiated from the Administration for us to consider. And,
Mr. Chairman, if I could ask the Police Department one quick question, if you'll permit
that?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Let us finish with Kimura International.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: If you'd be patient enough to wait for that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, and my question just relates to what was stated in
testimony this morning. So I wanted to give the Department a chance to respond.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Well, I -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: At a later point.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --I still have questions for the Kimura, so if you want to ask your
question -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --go ahead, but I'll keep them up here.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It's just for Sergeant Aoki.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just related to...from the comments made by one of our
testifiers with regards to the police presence or enforcement with regards to the bike tours
coming down, I just wanted to give you a chance to respond. Is the police up there or are
we having difficulties getting police to monitor the situation that's currently going on
with regards to the bike tours in Kula?
MR. AOKI: Just about a little over a year ago we had officers up there enforcing some of the
bicycle codes. At that time, most of the citations went to the riders of the bicycles and
just so happen they were the customers of the bike tours. Within the last, I think, about
six, six or seven months we sent people up there because of the issue or the complaint
that people were running the stop sign at Crater Road, Haleakala Highway. A few
citations were issued and most of them were towards to motorists that were running the
stop signs. Some of the bike tours or bike riders were stopped. They were told about it.
One, one of the motorists also said before that, well, I thought it was a yield sign. So I
think maybe way back it used to be a yield sign, but since they've changed it.
But as far as getting up there...because all of the citations that we issue, if we're going
after the bicyclists who are not stopping, it doesn't go to the, the lead rider unless that
lead rider doesn't stop. It doesn't go to the company, the company's not riding the
bicycles. All the citations will be going to the, the person on the bike. And I know we
talked about or heard people talk about negatively affecting our visitor industry. And,
you know, we try to do the educational part with the bike tour companies, but we haven't
been up there recently, no.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Now, in light of the concern expressed by the testifier,
then will the Department now make a periodic, at the very least...I know you're sort of
stretched for manpower, but I guess in light of what's been expressed here today if that's
something for consideration the Department would, I guess, step up presence a little bit
more in light of what's been said? Is that something the Department would consider?
MR. AOKI: Yeah, we can consider it, but there's a lot of other areas that have problems similar
to that too, so we're just spreading ourselves out all over. So it's not like we can be there
every day, you know, five days a week, seven days a week -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
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MR. AOKI: --but we could, but then just...you know, once we're up there it's not just the
bicyclists, it's going to be the motorists also.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, and, and I know realistically five days are hard, but at
least, you know, once a week, twice a week at a minimum. So I know there are a lot of
other pressing concerns around the island, but anyway thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Molina. And also present from the Police
Department is Lieutenant Kaho`ohanohano. Thank you for being here. Members, any
other questions, otherwise the Chair will ask his questions of Kimura International?
Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. You know, I kind of agree with
Member Molina in regards to his questioning to Milton Arakawa. And, you know, prior
to...Milton gave his opening remarks, and, and he noted three different areas that, you
know, he should...we should be looking at. And, and the first of all, first of all, he
recommended that the Department look at new ordinance that is going to be required so
that something that, you know, the Administration can move forward on, and then also
the funding. You know, what will be the requirements to fulfill some of the
recommendation of the study and, you know, it doesn't take overnight to do that. And he
talked about the pull-outs as one means of providing some safety, probably immediate
safety for bikers.
So, you know, listening to Mr. Arakawa at, at least he provided us with some
recommendations that they're going to be working on as a Department regarding bicycle,
bicycle tours in general. So I just want to, you know, provide comment to that, because
he already gave us, you know, some of the things that he's going to be moving forward
on. And, again, it's going to take this Council to approve the ordinances, it's going to
take this Council to approve the funding for any improvements regarding bicycle, bicycle
tours. So thank you for letting me provide you with these comments. And, you know,
we all talk about funding, and I'm so curious about how the State of Hawaii do their
funding in regards to bicycle lanes, bicycle paths. So, thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Member Pontanilla. I have a few questions I'd like to
ask. In the plan it's identified that there's five bike routes and who established those bike
routes? Was it the bike industry?
MR. KIMURA: Yes, that's correct.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. And in your developing of your plan and your researching of the
information, do you see these five bike routes as something that you would recommend
maintaining, decreasing, or somehow changing?
MR. KIMURA: Well, I, I think the route, routes themselves have changed over time where the
industries no longer go along certain routes.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. All right.
MR. KIMURA: So it's not for us to determine which are the best routes. I think the industry
looked at that and decided which ones they felt were the most appropriate for that.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah, and I think my question was not for you to determine which was
the best routes, but the number of routes. Because if the industry regulates that, they can
determine that maybe they need five more routes, and how would that play to the limited
highway space up there that comes, you know, through Kula and Makawao. So that, that
was the direction of my question. If you have a response, fine, otherwise I will ask you
the next question.
MR. KIMURA: No, we don't have an answer.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. And maybe Director Arakawa could answer this
question or maybe you, Mr. Kimura. How many miles of the bike routes are County
owned highways or roadways?
MR. KIMURA: We can get you the exact number.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. And while I'm waiting for you to get that number, I'm not sure if
your study also has the miles for the State highways also even though we have
Ms. Shibuya here, if you have that.
MR. KIMURA: We...in Table 2 of our data analysis and findings in our study -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. KIMURA: --that's Page 3-1 -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. KIMURA: --we have a table that shows you the State highways -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. KIMURA: --Haleakala Crater Road Highway, and Hana Highway, and then the County
roads -CHAIR MEDEIROS: So how...
MR. KIMURA: --Kealaloa and so forth. And all of them have the start and end points which
gives you the approximate distances for each segment.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. And would you have that?
MR. KIMURA: Sure.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: What the State highways are?
MR. KIMURA: The State highways would account for about 14, 14.6 miles
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. KIMURA: The County would be 12...about 14.2.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, 14.2 County. Okay. Thank you for that. Then also in the study, in
2007 statistics, there were 33 bicycle accidents; 20 in Kula, 13 in Makawao. Now, in
establishing this statistics are these 33 accidents of bike tour bikes or just any bikes,
whether they were recreation, or unescorted, or unguided? What, what did that statistic
reflect?
MR. KIMURA: They were, they were all just bicycle accidents.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Whether they -MR. KIMURA: Not...we, we couldn't...
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --were tours or recreational.
MR. KIMURA: Yeah, we could not differentiate.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. So all of it. Okay. And then also in the 2007 study Maui had 622
fewer vehicular accidents than the Big Island; however, Maui had 58 more bicycle
accidents, 80 percent more. And can you give us a response on what produced that?
Why did we have less vehicular accidents, but more bicycle accidents than the Big
Island? And the reason I ask this question is the statistics are great, but we want to know
the basis for it, and how did you arrive at this, and were there reasons that caused these
statistics to be different, you know, than the Big Island having more.
MR. KIMURA: I'll let Nancy answer.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. Ms. Nishikawa?
MS. NISHIKAWA: You know, we don't know the specific reasons why these accidents
occurred, because we, we didn't have the cause of accident data.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
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MS. NISHIKAWA: However, one major reason we would suspect is the number of vehicle
miles driven and the number of bicycle miles ridden. So use of roadway facilities by
bicyclists versus vehicles would be a major consideration, we would think.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: So is it to say, with that response, that the Big Island had less
mileage...miles than us in riding bikes down from the mountains?
MS. NISHIKAWA: We would suspect that there are...although, you know, the Big Island also
has a lot of bicycle riding because there are the triathlons and so forth -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Right. Right.
MS. NISHIKAWA: --but Maui, because of the number of bicycle tour participants as well as the
general population probably has a lot more bicycle riders.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: I see. Okay. Thank you for that response. And...okay...I think that's,
that's all I have, and I appreciate that. Members, any more questions for Kimura
International? If not, we're going to ask them...thank you for coming up here to answer
those questions, and we're going to allow you to leave and bring up State Highways and
bring our police forward again to the panel.
...Okay. Lieutenant Kaho' ohanohano is also coming down to be a part of this. So,
Ms. Shibuya, would you introduce yourself and your position with State DOT Highways?
MS. SHIBUYA: Yes, my name is Charlene Shibuya. I'm the Assistant District Engineer and
Construction Engineer for the State Department of Transportation, Maui District Office.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you. And, Lieutenant Kaho' ohanohano, if you want to identify
yourself and the division that you're with.
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: My name is Lieutenant Michael Kaho' ohanohano. I'm assigned
to the Traffic Division at the present time with the Police Department.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you. So, Members, the floor is open for questions for the police
and for the State Highways. I'm going to start from my right. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Interesting question you asked, Mr. Chair, so
I'm going to kind of go right to that, that...those questions. As you heard, in this report it
shows the number of vehicle accidents and the number of bicycle accidents. And so, I
wanted your take, Officer Aoki. What do you think has caused that big disparity between
what the Big Island has and what we have as far as bicycle, because grant you, you get
triathlons and all that kind of stuff on the Big Island, but as best my memory serves me,
and, and we can check with the Big Island, they don't have anything that comes down
from Mauna Kea and Mauna Loa as far as bicycle tours like we have here in Haleakala;
is that correct?
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MR. AOKI: As far as I'm aware, I don't, I don't believe Big Island has a similar business like a
downhill bicycle tour business.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, for which if we could, and I could...we could ask
Cruise...Cruiser Phil and Phil Feliciano could probably give you an idea on how
many at the peak how many were coming down. And in 2007, 2006, 2007 we were
still at what I call the peak of bicycle tours, guided and unguided. And I think you'll find
that that alone would just make the number skew way out of whack because of the
number of people coming down the mountain; wouldn't you say that, Mr.,
Sergeant Aoki?
MR. AOKI: Possibly, but also you got to look at, I think, how the Big Island documents their
bicycle accidents, because we...if, if a motor vehicle is not involved with a bicyclist it's
not a motor vehicle accident.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see.
MR. AOKI: It would be classified as a miscellaneous accident. So it could also be that there
were more reported on Maui than there were on the Big Island.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see.
MR. AOKI: And I think just because of the geographic layout of how Maui is -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. AOKI: --it's more conducive to recreational bicycle riding and not as much as for
competitions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Like the Big Island would be?
MR. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And does each police department have different
methodology of reporting, like you mentioned if it's non-vehicle, then it would be a
miscellaneous not a vehicle accident? All police departments do it the same way or is
there variations between the police departments?
MR. AOKI: For classifications for -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
MR. AOKI: --for the motor vehicle accidents the departments are all doing it the same way.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. AOKI: I don't know what just a strictly a bicycle accident will be documented under,
because Honolulu documents it differently than we do. Our, our heading or classification
would be a miscellaneous accident. The Honolulu Police Department documents it
differently on a different heading. So...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not to beat a dead horse, Mr. Chair, I would like to request
at your, at your convenience, maybe we, we ask the Big Island...you know, write a letter
to them and ask them how they classify the difference between their accidents on, on
bicycles. Because I think it's important if we're going to make a comparison we compare
apples with apples. So I leave that up to you, Mr. Chair, on that one.
Next question I have for you...
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah, Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah, our Staff will make a note of that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. I appreciate that, Mr. Chair. The next
question I have for you, these accidents that have been reported on the bike hill on
bicycle accidents, how many were directly related to these tours and how many of the
accidents were none? It should be there, but, you know, just so that the public
understands.
MR. AOKI: Okay. If you could hold on we have to -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sure.
MR. AOKI: --just kind of look it up.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And while you're looking that up, I guess, the only
other question I would have, and I'll let my other Members ask questions, would be for
Ms. Shibuya. Is this timetable...and let me...let them answer the question, and then I'll
go back to you, is the timetable as far as the existing and possible pull-offs that would be
in the State jurisdiction. You know, I know we got to do our own, Mr., Mr. Chair, but the
State jurisdiction would be my question for Ms. Shibuya, if there is any kind of...on the
STIP Plan is that part of it and all that. So, anyhow, Mr. Aoki or
Officer Kaho`ohanohano, or I should say Lieutenant, excuse me?
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: Lieutenant Kaho' ohanohano.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Sorry.
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MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: But we did, we did a study on miscellaneous accidents only
involving bicycles only from 2005 to 2010, the amount we had in 2010 anyway, and from
2005 and 2006 there were 24 total accidents. This is bicycle tour related accidents,
whether it's unguided or guided.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: Okay. Nine in 2005 were guided, 15 were unguided; 2006, 11
guided accidents, 13 unguided accidents; 2007, four guided and 16 unguided accidents;
2008, the numbers start to drop because of the, the Crater closing down, one guided, nine
unguided; 2009, six guided, 13 unguided; and 2010 when I submitted this paperwork, two
guided and three unguided. One of those resulted in a fatality near Baldwin Avenue near
Kee Road.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. Okay. Thank you and at least now we
have...you know, again, I think the discussion earlier was about these guided and
unguided, and I can see where the numbers vastly skewed towards the unguided, you
know, that the numbers seem to be consistently higher. And just going back real quickly,
if you can. On these various years, how many actual fatalities occurred, like, for '05, '06,
'07?
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: I, I don't have -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You don't have that, okay.
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: --the number of fatalities for any other year, but 2010. I...I'm not
aware of any other fatality that occurred on State or County property from 2005 to 2009.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think I have to disagree with you -MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: I don't...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --because my memory, my memory serves that there
was -MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and I think Mr. Muschietti, if he was here, would
probably tell you that.
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: I, I don't have and -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: --and the reason being that I didn't check motor vehicle collisions
either.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: And motor vehicle collisions might have fatalities involvement.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: Okay. But the miscellaneous accident, by the bike, bicycles
themselves -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see.
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: --I, I didn't, we didn't find any fatalities when we went back and
looked at the, the information. We had to do a hand search.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, so just to be clear, these fatality...or this report
here are bicycle mishaps not involving a vehicle.
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: Not involving -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: --a vehicle. Not involving a vehicle.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. And I -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah, Member Victorino, also I think the fatality was on Federal highway
in the Crater one, I think, there was one -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Federal property.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --which, which wouldn't be a County . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I understand that, but again I think the, the, the,
the...my memory serves me the other fatality were vehicle-related. In other words, they
ran across the road, hit, hit a vehicle and stuff like that. So...and just so that I clarify that
this is non-vehicle, in other words, just bicycle mishaps?
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: Just bicycle mishaps.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So that now I can...that clears my mind because
now we know that the other fatalities involved being...I remember one hitting a bus, one
running into a car, and these were guys crossing over, losing control, and bam, you know
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what I mean. So...and that's something we'll talk about a little bit later, but thank you
for that clarification, Lieutenant.
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: Just, just a little bit of clarification also that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: --most of the fatalities, you're going to find them in the Kimura
study anyway because that's -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. KAHO`OHANOHANO: --actually data that they can get from the State Department of
Transportation. Whenever a fatal collision occurs involving a motor vehicle, we are
bound...we have to report it to DOT, and they keep a record of all, all of that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. And, again, I thank you for your
clarification because that at least tells us what we're looking at. This is all non-vehicle
mishaps by bikes. Now, Ms. Shibuya, my question to you as I asked earlier. Is there in
the STIP monies or plans to put monies aside for some of these pull-offs and other
improvements as recommended in the Kimura report?
MS. SHIBUYA: Yes, we actually have. Actually, out of the Bike Plan Hawaii that was done in
2003, which was Statewide, of course, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
MS. SHIBUYA: So we actually do have Crater Road pull-outs, four of them already
programmed in the STIP, you know, the Statewide Transportation Improvement
Program. And so, we have that coming out. Well, we're starting to finish up the
design....actually, starting to do the design so it comes out like next year. For the, I, I
should say the second half of the downhill route, which is Haleakala Highway from the
Crater Road junction to Kealaloa Avenue, we have resurfacing that's scheduled next
year. And so, we're going to piggyback the shoulder improvements because that's the
most logical thing to do, because it's...you know, you get a bang for your buck when you
do that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. SHIBUYA: And so, in this two different cases, two different sources of funding the Crater
Road is actually Federal funds 80/20; 20 is Capital Improvement Program; and the
second half is actually special maintenance, which, which comes from the fuel tax. So
we, we try to look at...you know, different sources to capture opportunities. So that's the
two routes that are under the State, under this study. And what we like about this study is
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it actually helped us to bring in the public element, because, you know, basically Kimura
went through two rounds of public meetings, I think it was Makawao and Kula.
And so, it kind of helped, helped us to identify, you know, where these existing pull-outs
are, and then also too...they also had this typical pull-out detail that was presented to the
public and, you know, got bought in. And so it sort of helped us to kind of, you know,
enhance our efforts to implement actually what has actually come out of the Bike Plan
Hawaii.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Very good. Thank you. And, Mr. Chair, I'll allow
other Members to ask questions. If they're not...if my questions...future questions are
not asked, then I'll ask it at another round. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you,
Ms. Shibuya.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I think Ms. Shibuya answered my question
regarding the funding and the funding source for bike paths, bike lanes, pull-outs. And
thank you for mentioning the bike plan that was done back in 2003 by the Kimura people.
Is there any plans to update that plan?
MS. SHIBUYA: Well, actually, usually every ten years they update the plan, but I kind of
wanted to add in, in general if, if you notice, generally, DOT if you look in the past
decades we, we actually have this guardrail and shoulder improvement funding that we
carry, and we actually use that to sort of, like, expand on our paved shoulders, which we
normally put at least four feet, but we try to expand here. So that's another source of
funding. And that's why we don't really have separate bikeway projects. And every
time we do a new corridor we try to do the complete-streets philosophy, you know, try to
put a bikeway or a separate bike path like in Mokulele, and then we also try to take care
of pedestrians as well as the disabled.
So that's kind of the philosophy. We try, we try to...if we attack a certain route we try to
incorporate things, you know, of course, within the funding and the priority to make it a
little bit more, you know, I guess, less costly, yeah, if you can kind of incorporate stuff
when you're there. So I know you had a question generally on how we fund bikeways -VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. SHIBUYA: --and we kind of take that approach, you know, the more complete-streets
philosophy.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, Mr. Kimura, was going to ask you folks if you
guys have any extra copies of the Bike Path Plans for the State of Hawaii.
MS. SHIBUYA: Yes, we actually have it on the website.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, you do.
MS. SHIBUYA: So if you want a hard copy you can have one, I can request one, but we would
prefer that you be green and review the copy on the website.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, again. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Member Pontanilla. Ms. Shibuya, in following up
Member Pontanilla's request, is the plan available on CD?
MS. SHIBUYA: I didn't see it in CDs, but we probably could, you know, burn some copies if, if
that would be the format that you want.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: I, I think...yeah, I think that would be better, because I understand the
plan is very, you know, sizeable and voluminous, you know, to make copies off the
internet.
MS. SHIBUYA: Yes, and it's Statewide, and it has these kind of, like, full-size, foldout maps
and stuff.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: So if CDs could be produced -MS. SHIBUYA: Okay.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --that would be a more efficient way of doing it
MS. SHIBUYA: Yeah, we, we can do that.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: So please consider that. Okay. Council Chair Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Shibuya, the Bike Plan Hawaii
and the recommendations being made by Kimura International is it still consistent,
because the recommendations in Kimura's that would be relative to improve staging
areas, the pull-outs, and the shoulder widening, as well as the connector roads, is it still
consistent with what the State is looking at implementing?
MS. SHIBUYA: Yes, it is consistent, and during the development of the plan, Kimura, they
were in close consultation with us, and we insisted that it be consistent. And I guess, it
kind of helped that they did the Bike Plan Hawaii too, so they had, you know, a lot of
inside knowledge.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Can you tell us what kind of money is involved with like that,
that 80 percent primarily . . . (inaudible).. .
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MS. SHIBUYA: Okay. For, for the Crater Road, basically we programmed approximately
400,000 in the STIP. So, you know, I guess the 20 percent would be, like, 80,000 State
funds and the rest would be, you know, Federal, yeah. So it's like about 320,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Three hundred twenty thousand.
MS. SHIBUYA: Yeah, that's just rough numbers. It was, to be specific, I think it was 389 or
something, something like that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, and your...the State project is broken down in, into
phases?
MS. SHIBUYA: Well, well, actually, not phases. It is two separate projects, because the Crater
Road...in the Bike Plan Hawaii the Crater Road pull-outs was priority one, and then the
lower portion, which is Haleakala Highway from Crater Road to Kealaloa, that was Phase
II. And I'm...you know, I'm talking about Statewide and that's why, you know, even if
it was in 2003 we're only getting onboard now, yeah. So but what we're doing instead of
trying to program Federal funds for that bottom...the middle portion, we're going to just
kind of like piggyback it on our special maintenance, because usually if we have a paver
there it's much more cost effective to do paved shoulders. Actually, there are paved
shoulders already, but we're going to expand the paved shoulders in some of the, you
know, the areas that you already have, you know, wide grass to pull-out areas, and we're
going to piggyback on that project.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Mateo. Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah, I only wanted to get the, the Police
Department's feedback on the testimony that came up earlier about looking at CD...CDL
as one way of managing the safety.
MR. AOKI: As the requirements for CDL goes, it's mostly with the Federal national...Federal
highways people, but as far as the vans I think that they're driving, it doesn't require a
CDL license, because a CDL is required if you have 15 passengers or more in a vehicle,
then a CDL Class C would be required. But I think theirs...they come under a lesser, a
lesser requirement of having a medical certificate, a medical clearance certificate, and
that's basically what sometimes people refer to or the drivers refer as a PUC physical.
And all that is, is just a medical physical, and if you don't have any kind of outstanding
medical issues like high blood pressure your...that certificate is good for two years.
Other than that it's a yearly examination.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So that's not one of the ways in which we would
look at some, some way of managing the, the drivers then on these, these vans and the --
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MR. AOKI: The CDL license.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --CDL would not be an appropriate. Okay.
MR. AOKI: No, the only, the only thing would be, like I said, the medical clearance card.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah, and then another comment that was made
by the testifier also was that there, there wasn't enough enforcement then, you know, or
in their view, you know, in their observation. So comments on that?
MR. AOKI: As far as enforcement, we, we enforce the Traffic Code, whether it be traffic
infractions or traffic crimes. Some of the issues were the stop sign. We can issue
citations for those. But as far as, like, the enforcement for permitting or not having a
permit to operate a bicycle tour, I believe that would come under the Department of
Finance
And as far as enforcing the Traffic Code, and stuff like that, the areas up there... you
know, some of the areas are not conducive to pulling over vehicles or anybody because
the shoulder is so narrow. Some of the areas are just difficult to enforce because there's
no place for us to observe the violation. We've kind of gotten a little creative where we
would, you know, post somebody at one location, but the car can't be there because
there's no physical space for it. If they're going in a certain direction, then we can radio
down the road where the car is waiting to pull this vehicle over for stop sign violation, as
an example.
The other enforcement fell on the bicycle riders themselves, the one we did over a
year...a little over a year ago, that was mostly due to equipment violations, citations were
issued for. And the most recent one was for the stop sign violations. But like in those
cases...you know, all of the, the riders will be getting the tickets, not the operator of the
tour. So, like I said earlier, it has, has somewhat of a negative impact on our visitor base
and...but when we do the enforcement it's not just based on the, the bicycle riders, it's
everybody, and that includes the residents that are up there that speed from the stop sign.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So just to, just to counter the testimony,
then you're saying then that you have employed whatever processes you have for
enforcement, and you have responded to some of those kinds of infractions then by the
riders. Because he had mentioned that he's...they're, they're taping it, and then they're
seeing violations, and then they're saying that there's no enforcement that's happening,
you know. Well, you heard the testimony.
MR. AOKI: Yes. I guess the days my officers were there he wasn't there or somebody wasn't
there, but it's not that we go there every week or even twice a week. It's, it's sporadic,
because you got all the, the other areas of the island to take care of, and our major, major
complaints are, you know, with speeding and that's all on the main highways, Haleakala,
Mokulele Highway. And so far those have been our most injury producing crashes
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because of the high speeds. And if bicycles are involved too that, you know, pretty,
pretty... can be pretty horrific. But some of the credit should go to the, the Upcountry
drivers, too, you know, because they know these bicycle tours are going on, and they,
they drive defensively.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. AOKI: So we should give them some of the credit for not having any more crashes than we
could be having.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for your clarification and
response.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Member Baisa, any further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'm pretty much at the end of what I really needed to
know, and I will await now your recommendation. I certainly am very interested in the
recommendation by Mr. Mayer, and that was that we need verbiage for new laws and that
some recommendation coming from Administration as to some kind of ordinance that we
can pass to implement some of the recommendations is where I'm at, at this point. Thank
you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No. No more questions, Chair. Just awaiting your
recommendation.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: All right. Any further questions, Members? Okay. The Chair will make
his recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Recommendation.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: I appreciate what Member Molina stated and also...which was also
commented to by Member Pontanilla. The reason I'm going to give this
recommendation...I, I want to state the reasons why.
First of all, Kula Community Association, in their testimony, said they would like to have
a little more time to review it and provide their comments and suggestions on it. I must
say this is the third meeting and if we further this it will go to a fourth meeting, and then
we're going to take action. And I think the reason why some people have not...haven't
had, had a good review of the study is that I remember when people were asking where is
the study, when is it going to be completed, and when is it available to the public? And
so, finally when we got it we immediately placed it on our agenda. And so, hopefully,
you know, that will help.
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Number two reason, we'd like to have the State DOT somehow, if they can, through
Ms. Shibuya, to cut some CDs for the Members to be able to review the State plan and,
and compare it to our County plan, and it was produced by the same organization,
Kimura International. So that should help.
Number three, I am planning to send a letter to the Department of Public Works for them
to produce for us or provide for us recommendations and priority, and how would they
implement that. Would they be initiating bills for ordinances? We want to see something
more exacting on that.
And, and then, number four is, you know, this was initiated by Member Baisa's County
Communication 10-93 in April 27 of 2010. So when we initially got the communication
referred to our Committee, we started to take action.
And then, fifth, July 20, 2010, we got the communication from the Department of Public
Works providing the study to us. So this has been moving along as quickly as this Chair
and this Committee can provide.
And, number six, well, that's, that's kind of related to my letter to the Department of
Public Works. And number...well, number six, is also...we're gonna...there was a
recommendation or a request to inquire with the Big Island on their statistics and, and the
reasons for it.
Number seven, which is the most important reason for my recommendation, is that we
have always known, and we've been instructed and guided by our County Council Chair
about completing our work in Committee and not in the Council, and I agree with that.
And so, if we move this out now, we'll just continue the Committee work in Council and
that would be unfair to the Council Chair to take that on.
So with all those reasons, my recommendation is to defer this item so we can complete
all of this that I've just expressed, and so we can move this out of Committee. And
talking to my staff, this will be a high priority on our agenda. We will put it on at our
next available meeting, and we should be able to send it to Council before the end of the
year. So we're going to move on it as quickly as we can.
So my recommendation, without objections, would be to defer this item. Any objections?
No objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: JP and MPV)
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Any...did you have discussion on anything? Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair, no. I just wanted to say I support your
recommendation, and I thank you very much, because you have tried very hard to move
this thing as quickly as you could once it was referred to your Committee, and the people
Upcountry are very appreciative, and I know Kula Community Association will
appreciate the additional time. You know, everyone has been very much obsessed with
all the activity that's going on right now, particularly in regard to the political activity and
that organization, as you know, is very busy. And so, they would certainly appreciate the
extra time. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Member Baisa. And the Chair appreciates, as the area
representative, your involvement in this, and also Member Molina who is the other part
of that area that this issue is about. So the item is deferred, and I'd like to thank all of
you for being here from the Administration; the Police Department, Sergeant Aoki and
Lieutenant Kaho`ohanohano; from, from Public Works, Director Arakawa; from
Corp. Counsel, David Galazin; and from the State DOT, Charlene Shibuya; and from our
Staff, Ms. Sakamoto and Mr. Geers. Members, thank you for your participation. The
meeting of the Infrastructure Committee is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
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